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A.  The purpose of this amendment is to answer contractor questions.   


B.  The following contractor questions were received and the following answers are hereby provided:

1. Are we required to pass any certification of authorization for Government projects or any requirements at all to go along with the bidding?

A. The offeror should provide a proposal that addresses the evaluation criteria listed in the solicitation.  Offeror’s must complete the Offeror Representations and Certifications that are in the solicitation.    

2. Is there an incumbent for this effort?  If so, who is the incumbent?

A. No.

3. What is the estimated value of this effort?

A. This procurement is a competitive bid, best value procurement.  The estimated value can not be released.

4. The solicitation synopsis includes hardware and software maintenance for one year.  Do you have information on what level of effort would be required for this maintenance?

A. The hardware shall be warranted for a period of one year.  Software maintenance shall be provided in accordance with best commercial practices as part of this contract, i.e., service releases updates, routine technical support and trouble isolation and repair.  Further definition is in the solicitation.

5. The SOW calls for a scheduling system with a two-week look-ahead.  How, if at all, is the scheduling system required to interface with your existing 6.2m antenna?

A. The scheduling system is not required to interface with the tracking antenna system.
6. The SOW refers to a L1B QA product called PGE02 MOD_PR02QA.  This is not produced by the existing NASA L1B direct broadcast code as distributed.  What is the format of this file?  Is it currently produced in the DAAC, and, if so, will the code to produce this file be released by NASA?

A. This product is not defined in the publicly available information.  Therefore, the Government is deleting it as a requirement for the system.
7. In the SOW, under “Processing Software Compatibility”, is a requirement to use algorithms that are 100% compatible with the GSFC DAAC operational code algorithms, etc.  It further states that the current operational code version is PGE v 4.0.9 (Terra), LUT Version 0, and PGE v 4.1.1 (Aqua), LUT Version 0.  Please explain the version numbers.  How are we supposed to obtain the latest version operational code? 

A. The latest version of the DB DAAC Operational Code is available from the Direct Readout Laboratory, at http://directreadout.gsfc.nasa.gov/ and is Release 2.1, which includes the following :

MOD_PR01 Version 4.0.0 (Terra and Aqua), producing MOD 01, Level 1A radiance counts

MOD_PR02 Version 4.1.1 (Terra), 4.0.9 (Aqua), producing MOD 02, Level 1B Calibrated 
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Radiances MOD_PR03 Version 4.0.0 (Terra), 3.0.2 (Aqua), producing MOD 03, Geolocation Data

Set See MODIS Level 1B Product User’s Guide, and MTPE EOS Data Products 

Handbook Volume 1 and Volume 2, for additional information.

Output files from the vendor’s processing software must be 100% compatible with the output files generated by the DAAC operational code.

8. The system to be procured starts with the 720 MHz interface to the existing antenna down converter.  What can you tell me about the existing antenna, e.g., manufacturer and size?

A. The antenna is an L3 Communications – EMP Systems Model 200 with a 6.2 meter parabolic dish.  
9. Is Level 1B RAID level-1B? 

A. No.  Level 1B is a MODIS data processing level that implements calibration algorithms to correct raw, earth-view-sector data for all known instrumental effects, and to transform the corrected data into calibrated products.  The products include MOD 01, radiance counts, MOD 02, calibrated geolocated radiances, and MOD 03, geolocation data set.
10. What are the specs of the PC and what Common Operating System is referenced and are any off site back-ups required for the system? 

A. Computer platform specifications and Operating System are to be proposed by the vendor based on satisfying the requirements of the Statement-of-Work.  Off-site backups are not required.

11. Is the Data Base already in operation or will it have to be set up or administered? 

A.  The DB in the solicitation refers to the Direct Broadcast mode from Aqua and Terra.  It does not indicate the existence of a database.

12. What format are the images acquired in to be display in real-time?

A. The system must simultaneously acquire, process and display the MODIS raw image data in accordance with the Statement-of-Work.

13. Is this RAID Level-0? 

A. No.  Level 0 MODIS data is defined as reconstructed time-ordered CCSDS packets with all communication artifacts (including duplicate packets) removed, and includes reassembly of the raw telemetry packets.”

14. What is the GSFC Distributed Active Archive Center operational code and/or where can I find information on it? 

A. Information on the GSFC Distributed Active Archive Center can be found at the following wesite:  http://rsd.gsfc.nasa.gov/eosdb/.

15. What is HDF-EOS format?
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A. See MODIS Level 1B Product User’s Guide, MCST Document #MCM-PUG-01-U-DNCN, http://hdf.ncsa.uiuc.edu/hdfeos.html , http://hdfeos.gsfc.nasa.gov/hdfeos/details.cfm?swID=41 , http://www.swa.com/meteorology/hdf/tutorial/Main_Topics.html for further references.

16. What are the technical specs for MODIS Terra and Aqua broadcast?  In other words, what is the information that we will be capturing?

A. See http://rsd.gsfc.nasa.gov/eosdb/ for information on Direct Broadcast mode.  

17. Where is PGE02 MOD_PR02 format defined?

A. MOD_PR02 is the Product Generation Executive Process producing output files.   Refer to:

http://www.mcst.ssai.biz/mcstweb/L1B/docs/MOD_PR02_V4.1.1_AQUA_abr.txt ,

http://www.mcst.ssai.biz/mcstweb/L1B/docs/MOD_PR02_V4.0.9_TERRA_abr.txt 

http://www.mcst.ssai.biz/mcstweb/L1B/docs/MYD02QKM.V4.1.0.fs.txt ,

http://www.mcst.ssai.biz/mcstweb/L1B/docs/MYD02HKM.V4.1.0.fs.txt ,

http://www.mcst.ssai.biz/mcstweb/L1B/docs/MOD021KM_v405.fs.txt 

18. Where is PGE02 MOD_PR02QA  format defined? 

A. This product is not defined in the publicly available information.  Therefore, the Government is deleting it as a requirement for the system.
19. Referring to the following NASA website, which of the MODIS Direct Broadcast implementations does this solicitation require, or are any of the 3 implementations acceptable?

http://eosdata.gsfc.nasa.gov/DAAC_DOCS/direct_broadcast/db_comparison.html
A. Processing Software shall be 100% compatible with latest release GSFC DAAC operational code algorithms, and output 100% compatible HDF-EOS format produced by the DAAC operational code…
20. Do you require a specific computer platform to be used for the implementation of this MODIS acquisition and processing system (i.e. SGI, Sun-Solaris, Linux, etc.)?
A. The requirement as stated in the Statement of Work is for a “…personal computer (PC) based system incorporating a commonly available operating system.”  The actual system implementation is left to the offeror.

21.  Is it required that the supplied ingest hardware control steering and pointing of the dish?

A. No.

22. If steering and pointing operations are independent of the MODIS DAP, is there a signal or other indicator that tells the system that a lock has been acquired on the satellite?

A. No.
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23. More technical information is needed on the downcoverter. Who is the manufacturer and what is the model number? What type of cabling interface is available from the downconverter?

A. The downconverter is a Mu-Del Incorporated Model Number MDC-8184F-72-2C.  The cabling interface is a RG214 cable terminated with a male N-type connector.  The downconverter maximum operational output is –20dBm and has a 60 dB dynamic range.

24. Is there rack space supplied for receiver and other systems components, or do we need to supply a rack?

A. The existing system can accommodate up to 40 inches (vertical) of standard 19-inch rack space.  Anything greater would require the offeror to provide dedicated equipment enclosures.

25. What level of security is required for the system?  Will it be on a secure network behind a firewall that handles authentication or will it be directly exposed to the internet?

A. The system will reside on a secure network, behind a firewall.

26. Will the schedule be uploaded from files?  If so is the format of those files already established?  What is that format?  Or will the system need to provide a GUI that the users will use to configure a schedule?  Is there any look and feel requirement for that GUI?

A. The system must have the scheduling capability.  This implementation of this capability will be evaluated as part of the offeror’s proposal.

27. Is RAID or mirroring required for the disk storage or is it enough to just provide big enough disk storage?

A. There is no requirement for RAID or mirroring disk storage.  It would be expected that best commercial practices would be used.

28. Will files be retrieved across the network?

A. Yes.  The existing network uses standard fast-Ethernet (100Mbps) using TCP/IP protocol.

29. Will files be archived to tape or is CD-RW preferable? Do we need to provide an archive facility such as tape jukebox? 

A. There is no requirement for providing archive facility.

30. The delivery period of one month is very aggressive and does not allow time for acquisition and integration of all the needed components. Can the delivery period be extended to 3 months? This would also extend the performance period to 4 months to allow for installation, training and acceptance testing.

A. The project requires the system be available for installation according to the stated delivery requirements.  Anticipation is the system will contain a high degree of commercial-off-the-shelf equipment and software.  Therefore, the schedule is attainable.

31. The delivery date is indicated as 1 month after award, but the period of performance is indicated as 3 months.  What is expected at the end of each of these periods?
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A. The vendor should expect to delivery the system within one month after award of the contract.  Two additional months are allowed for installation, integration and acceptance testing of the full system.

32. What are the requirements for this solicitation in terms of International Traffic in Arms Regulation (ITAR) and Exports Administration Regulations (EAR)?

A. The vendor would be required to follow all U.S. Export Control related statutes to include International Traffic in Arms Regulation (ITAR) and Export Administration Regulations (EAR).  In addition, before non-U.S. citizens may have access to NASA facilities and systems, compliance with NASA’s Procedure and Guidelines for Processing Requests for Access to NASA by Foreign Nationals or Representatives, NPG 1371.2 (April 19, 1999) is required.

33. On Section 17a of the Solicitation/Contract/Order for Commercial Items form, what are "Code", "Facility Code", and "Cage Code"?

A.  The only one that you need to be concerned with is the cage code.  You must enter you your (5) digit alpha numerical cage code.  If you do not have one, Information about CAGE codes may be obtained from the following URL: http://www.dlsc.dla.mil.   An offeror who does not have a CAGE code should complete Section B of a DD 2051, Request for Assignment of a Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) Code at http://ec.msfc.nasa.gov.msfc.cate.html 
34.  On Section 24, what is "Minimum Amount"?


A. The minimum amount represents the minimum dollar amount of the contract.  The value will be filled in at the time of award.

34. How many copies of the proposal are required? 

A. Three original signed copies of the model contract and three copies of your technical proposal.

35. When is the expected contract award date?

A. The government would anticipate making an award within four weeks from receipt of proposals.

36. What are the deliverables expected to be delivered within one month of contract award (p. 4 of Solicitation)?  Please give clarification on Period of Performance (p. 5 of Solicitation).  How does Period of Performance compare with the Delivery requirement, that is, "Period of Performance is 3 months from effective date of the PO" vs. "Delivery shall occur within one month of contract award".

A. The vendor should expect to delivery the system within one month after award of the contract.  Two additional months are allowed for installation, integration and acceptance testing of the full system.

37. Part of the Requirements (p. 2 of Solicitation) is a "receiver".  Do we assume this is software-only component (e.g. APIs), and that the hardware "receiver" component is provided through facilities of SSC (i.e. 720 Megahertz IF link)?  Are there other receiver hardware expected from the vendor?
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A. Radio frequency receiver is part of the system deliverable.  Required input is for 720 Megahertz baseband data from existing Stennis Space Center antenna downconverter.  The system shall provide all necessary hardware and software to receive, ingest, process and store MODIS direct broadcast data.

38. Please elaborate on "schedule-controlled automatic configuration" requirement (p. 2, Section 3 Requirements).  What types of configuration need to be automated, and at what frequency of interval?

A. The scheduler shall control all components within the Data Acquisition and Processing System including such configuration as may be required to automatically switch between the Aqua and Terra satellites.

39. On the Real-time image display requirement (p. 3), do you currently have the process or software to display data in visual form?  If not, what are the expectations for real-time display (e.g. what file format, through what output device?)?

A. No, the offeror should expect to display near real-time imagery as it is received by the system in raw format.

40. On the Scheduling requirement (p. 3), will the system receive data continuously, if not, at what frequency of interval?  What needs to be scheduled two-weeks in advance?

A. The system will receive data periodically from the Aqua and Terra satellite whenever a pass is within range of the ground receiving antenna.  The Data Acquisition and Processing System shall be capable of automatically ingesting data from either satellite without the need for user intervention over a two-week interval.

41. On Level-0 and Level-1 B data generation and processing requirement (p. 3), do you have the existing algorithms we can make use of?  Are the vendors supposed to write the algorithm?

A. The software shall be compatible with the GSFC DAAC operational code algorithms for producing Level 0 and Level 1B data products.  Implementations are up to the individual offerors.

42. What is the estimated storage requirement for 15 days worth of Level 0 and Level 1B data?  What is the preferred archival storage device?

A. The offeror should do their own calculation of the file sizes necessary to meet the Statement-of-Work requirements.

43. Regarding GSFC DAAC operational code algorithm (p. 4), what platform or operating system is this based on?  Will this be made available for the vendor's use?

A. The GSFC DAAC operational code is publicly available.

44. For software maintenance (p. 4), how often will we get updates to DAAC operational code?

A. The GSFC DAAC operational code is periodically updated.  While the actual number of updates is unknown, historically, it is updated two to three times per year.
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45. How many copies of system technical documentations are required?

A. One hard copy and one electronic copy of all system documentation shall be provided with the system.

46. What is the simplified acquisition threshold (p. 8)?

A. $100,000.00.  

47. What are the four designated industry groups (DIGs). Page 8 of 20?

A. Construction (except dredging), Nonnuclear Ship Repair, Architectural and Engineering Services, and Refuse Systems and Related Services.  For further clarifications see FAR 19.1005.

48. Is any penalty clause if we are unable to deliver it in one month (because it requires more than 3 months effort to write data processing software as per "DAAC operational code version is PGE v 4.0.9 (Terra), LUT Version 0, and PGE v 4.1.1 (Aqua), LUT Version 0")?

A. The offeror should be prepared to delivery the system within the performance period specified.  If the vendor is unable to delivery an operational system within the contract period, the government is required to assess remedies that could potentially result in contract termination.  

49. Is the 720MHz IF frequency a modulation baseband rate or is further down conversion required before connecting to a demodulator?

A. The X-Band signal from the Terra and Aqua satellites is downconverted to a 720MHz intermediate frequency(IF).  This IF frequency is input into the MODIS Data Acquisition and Processing System.  The system shall perform any functions necessary to receive, ingest, process and store direct broadcast data.

50. Does the Aqua and Terra satellite have a different baseband output format, i.e, different bit sync frequency and different frame sync formats?

A. There are differences between the downlink parameters for the Aqua and Terra satellites.  These parameters are all publicly available.

51. Is there a requirement for Station time or OBT(Onboard Time) for which data is to be acquired in DAPS.  

A. The schedule must keep track of station time for scheduling and acquisition.

52. What is the time sampling of the Baseband data is to be achieved?

A. Technical details on the Aqua and Terra satellite is all publicly available.  Offerors should seek out publicly available data during proposal development.
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53. What is the G/T or EB/Noise (Error baseband bit) figures for Terra and Aqua digital data frequencies using the Stennis Space Center 6.2M Parabolic Antenna?

A. The offeror should assume the antenna provides the required link margin.  The offeror should propose a receiver as part of the system that offers the best value to the Government.   The offeror should also include receiver performance specifications as part of their proposal.

54. Is the system required to support simultaneous passes from Terra and Aqua?

A. No, simultaneous reception not required.

55. Does remote operation of the of station require online status and alarms be sent from station to remote monitoring unit, e.g, loss of lock in RF/Baseband during satellite pass or higher BER during data ingestion?

A. The system shall be capable of being configured and monitored from a remote location via the internet/

56. Does the GSFC DAAC operational code version PGE v 4.0.9 (Terra), LUT Version 0, and PGE v 4.1.1 (Aqua), LUT Version 0" requires connectivity to RDBMS package like oracle etc?

A. The Government only requires 100% compatibility with the GSFC DAAC operational code.  The offeror should understand the internal workings and interfaces of the system.

57. Do you expect DAPS to also retain data reception capabilities for other modes of Satellite Operations?

A. MODIS direct broadcast data from Terra and Aqua are the only required satellite operation modes?

58. Does the 30-minute turn around time for three - 5 minute (15 minutes total) segments include Level 1B processing?

A. Yes.

59. Is the GSFC-DAAC operational code for Terra and Aqua compatible with multithreading operating system environment?

A. The Government only requires 100% compatibility with the GSFC DAAC operational code.  The offeror should understand the internal workings and interfaces of the system.

60. Is the existing system remotely controllable for change of frequency?

A. The system is not required to control any part of the existing antenna system.  Antenna and downconverter control are independent of the MODIS Data Acquisition and Processing System.

C.  RFO Page 3 of 20, Section 3: Delete the following statement, "Level 1B code shall also generate one QA file in PGE02 MOD_PR02QA format".

D.  The bid closing date and time remains unchanged.

E.  All other terms and conditions remain the same.

